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Question #1: 

Can the agency please provide all forms in Word or in an editable PDF? The current document is password 
protected, and we can not edit it.  Yes, the following forms will be provided in an editable PDF word document. 

Exhibit A – References Current Customers (page 26 in RFP) 

Cost Proposal, Section D (page 27 in RFP) 

Optional Additional Module Pricing – Explore (page 28 in RFP) 

OƯer Form, OF-1 (page 29 in RFP) 

Financial Mangement Software Solution Requirements Questionnaire (pages 30 to 44 in RFP) 

 

Question #2: 

Similar to Question 1, would like the forms which the agency wishes completed in Word format.  Also, if we could 
get the RFP in Editable PDF. We like to highlight sections of the RFP that we know we need to respond to and ask 
questions about.  Highlighting sections makes us more eƯicient in responding. 
A fillable form will be provided. 
 

Question #3: 

On page 4 in the RFP schedule secƟon, it appears that the DOW will respond to quesƟons by October 6, but quesƟons 
from respondents are due to the DOW by Sept 17.  Frequently published answers to quesƟons create new quesƟons.  If 
the DOW does not respond to quesƟons unƟl aŌer Sept 17, will the DOW allow follow-up quesƟons to your published 
answers? 
DOW has responded to the quesƟons received.   
 

Question #4: 

To submit a thorough proposal, would DOW consider extending the due date two weeks? 
RFP Significant Dates and Timeline has changed.  Proposals are due on November 7, 2025 at 2:00 PM HST. 

 

Question #5: 

Will another 3rd party company (e.g., IV&V, QA, etc.) be involved in project management or quality assurance type of 
work for DOW? No. 
 

Question #6: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire- 36. Support for DUO mulƟ-factor authenƟcaƟon including servers, VPN devices, mobile 
access. Does this requirement apply only to remote access scenarios (e.g., from home or while traveling), or does it also 
include standard logins to the cloud applicaƟon from within the DOW network? 
The MFA requirement is to include any login that can not use our SSO integraƟon with MS Entra either on prem or off. 
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Question #7: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-62. Workflow approval rouƟng of Journal Entries. How many layers of approval hierarchies 
is required? What are the workflow criteria, e.g., dollar amounts? A minimum of one approval hierarchy is required.   
 

Question #8: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-88. Retain lease rate history. Could you please elaborate on this requirement? 
History must be maintained no less than 7 years after the contract closes, per retention requirements. 

 

Question #9: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-91. Track retainage on Contracts. Could you please explain how DOW determines the 
retainage amount?  Specifically, is retainage calculated as a percentage of each invoice? Yes, DOW calculates retainage as 
a percentage of an invoice. Does DOW ever apply a fixed dollar amount for retainage instead of a percentage? No. 
 

Question #10: 

Please provide a total number of employees in DOW.  119 
 

Question #11: 

Could you please confirm how many DOW staff members will be dedicated to this project, along with their anƟcipated 
level of involvement? If possible, please provide esƟmated percentages of Ɵme allocated for each role or resource. 
Fiscal StaƯ – 3 to 4, IT StaƯ – 1 to 2.  Time allocated will vary depending on implementation timeline and other 
projects 

 

Question #12: 

Would it be possible to provide a copy-enabled PDF or fillable/editable document format to support a more efficient and 
accurate response to the RFP? Yes, a fillable form will be provided. 
 

Question #13: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-102. Import U.S. Bank Purchasing Card transacƟons with coding and post to line-item 
vendor. Note: pCard applicaƟon of module would be further explored. Does DOW currently require pCard holders to 
create purchase orders (POs) for pCard transacƟons? No, POs are not created; however, a preapproval authorizaƟon is 
required.  AddiƟonally, how many acƟve pCard holders does DOW have? 25 
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Question #14: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-93. Import approved Contract request metadata from Laserfiche workflow to create a new 
contract record; describe alternate tools that could be used for this purpose. Please elaborate on this requirement. What 
are the examples of approved contract request metadata? 
DOW is in the process of implementing Laserfiche Forms for contract execution. An import function to create 
contract records seamlessly vs. manually creating a contract record for future contract payment requests. 

 

Question #15: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire- 94. Interface with 3rd party online Bid and Quote management tools, e.g., Hawaii HiePRO, 
HANDS, Aloha eBuys. Please confirm whether Hawaii HiePRO, HANDS and Aloha eBuys allow inbound interface. If so, 
please provide interface layout. 
There is no inbound interface for Hawaii HiePRO, HANDS and Aloha eBuys.  

 

Question #16: 

Approximately how many 1099 vendors does DOW currently manage?  In 2024, DOW issued payments to approximately 
270 vendors.  For the 2024 tax year, three 1099 MISC Forms and thirteen 1099 NEC Forms were filed with the IRS. 
 

Question #17: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-113. Automated bank reconciliaƟon based on import of electronic bank file. Include all 
transacƟons including auto-pays, payroll, EFT, etc. Is it acceptable to exclude automated bank reconciliaƟon for Payroll 
since Payroll is not processed in Accounts Payable module? 
Payroll related transactions are excluded; payroll is processed outside of DOW. 

 

Question #18: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-142. Interface with Accounts Payable to process customer refunds. Does DOW's current 
UƟlity Billing system support an outbound interface for integraƟon with external systems? If so, please provide interface 
layout. 
There is no current outbound interface. 

 

Question #19: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-138. Searchable customer history by parcel, name, address, etc. View accounts, service 
orders, work orders, meter replacements, usage, peak consumpƟon, communicaƟons, complaints, resoluƟons, etc. 140. 
Generate email or text noƟficaƟon to work crew when payment is received for account designated as a shut-off. 141. 
Issue credit for bill adjustments and apply to next billing cycle. 144. Generate 60-day past due leƩers with late fees.    
Could you please confirm whether these requirements are correctly categorized as "R", considering it relates to UƟlity 
Billing not directly related to new Financial Management SoŌware? 
UƟlity Billing is not within the scope; quesƟons 138 to 144 incorrectly categorized, it should be “E”.  If selected as a top 
responder, it would be ideal to view the billing soluƟon at a high-level during demonstraƟon. 
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Question #20: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-114. Generate report of proposed checks and related invoices for Council review (e.g., 
vendor, invoice date, amount, etc.). Does this requirement related to AP invoice approval process? If so, how many layers 
of AP invoice approval hierarchies is required? What are the workflow criteria, e.g., dollar amounts? 
Disregard question 114. 

 

Question #21: 

Requirements QuesƟonnaire-149. Import repair and maintenance data from Cartegraph to update Fixed Asset record. 
Does DOW's current Cartegraph system support an outbound interface capability for data integraƟon with other 
systems? 
Yes. 
 

Question #22: 

The RFP states, "DOW expects to implement a replacement financial management soŌware soluƟon using a phased 
approach or an alternaƟve methodology as recommended by the selected Vendor and approved by DOW" (page 8). If we 
propose a two-phase approach, should we provide detailed plans and costs for both Phase I and Phase II, or only for 
Phase I? Would it be acceptable for us to submit a proposal for Phase I only at this stage? This phased approach aligns 
with DOW's stated expectaƟons and reduces risk by avoiding a full contract commitment upfront. It allows both parƟes 
to focus iniƟally on the successful implementaƟon of the core financial modules. Given the project's broad scope and 
DOW's small organizaƟonal size, this strategy offers a more focused, manageable, and lower-risk path to success by 
minimizing daily work disrupƟon and increase the chance of compleƟng the system on Ɵme and within budget. For 
example, would it be acceptable to propose the implementaƟon of General Ledger with encumbrance/fund control 
enabled, Contract Management and Procurement, Accounts Payable, Financial ReporƟng, and Bank ReconciliaƟon in 
Phase I with an esƟmated 9-month implementaƟon and Go-Live? 
You may submit mulƟple proposal opƟons as you see fit and it will be reviewed and evaluated.  
 

Question #23: 

Could you please share the esƟmated budget allocated for this project if possible? Having this informaƟon will help us 
develop a more accurate and appropriately scoped proposal.  
Budget is not available to be shared. 
 

Question #24: 

How many years of historical General Ledger (GL) data will need to be converted at the Ɵme of Go-Live? 
Data will not be transferred from legacy system. 
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Question #25: 

Are there specific Ɵme periods when staff availability for the project may be limited (e.g., during fiscal year-end close, 
audits, or peak operaƟonal cycles)? 
StaƯing availability will be limited during annual audit cycle (August to December); on-going rate study may 
demand and pull resources from time to time.   

 

Question #26: 

Does DOW have a targeted Go-Live date that we should plan around when developing the project Ɵmeline? 
Budgeting module target date is December 2026.  General Ledger and all other modules July 1, 2027. 

 

Question #27: 

Which depreciaƟon methods does DOW currently use for managing fixed assets? 
Straightline 

 

Question #28: 

Could you please provide sample financial and related reports that the new Financial Management SoŌware will be 
expected to generate? (Table 4, Page 6)  
Sample reports are not available.  Top respondent should demonstrate standardized reporting functionality that is 
easily accessible and journalized instantaneously.  Standard reports should be available at any time and run on 
demand. 

 

Question #29: 

Has a budget range been idenƟfied for the current project - ImplementaƟon cost, Annual cost, and number of years? If 
so, is it possible to share? Budget for the iniƟal project is set; however, addiƟonal costs proposed for the project will be 
determined upon receipt of the responses. 
Has the Department of Water seen any product demonstraƟons in the last 12 months leading up to the release of this 
RFP? If so, which products have you seen? OpenGov, Central Square. 
We were unable to locate the Requirements QuesƟonnaire referenced in Proposal SecƟon B - System Requirements 
(FuncƟonal and Technical) on the portal. Could you kindly provide this as a separate Word document? Requirements 
start on page 30.  A fillable PDF file will be provided.  AddiƟonally, please share the other supporƟng templates, including 
Exhibit A, the Cost Proposal format, and OF-1, to ensure we have the complete set of documents. Required templates 
will be provided in either Word or fillable PDF. 
How many legal enƟƟes or business units currently operate within the orgnizaƟon that will require ERP support? One. 
Please provide an overview of their core funcƟons. If mulƟple enƟƟes exist, should the system facilitate consolidated 
financial reporƟng across them? N/A 
Will the chart of accounts structure remain the same, or is DOW open to redesigning it during implementaƟon? We are 
open to explore opƟons; however, it must meet certain requirements for reporƟng purposes.  
Is fund accounƟng required to support inter-fund transacƟons and automaƟc balancing entries? Yes, this is required. 
Does DOW require posiƟon-based budgeƟng integrated with current HR/payroll system i.e. Workday? Yes. 
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Will budget versions need to be approved through a workflow, and should historical versions be retained? Yes, budget 
adjustment and original and revised budget amounts available upon account inquiry, and addiƟonal reporƟng. 
Is there a need to publish budget data to a public transparency portal (e.g., Tyler Hawaii)? No 
Are projects and grants tracked separately or within a unified structure? Project and grant accounƟng is required.  
Currently tracked manually via excel worksheets. 
Is grant billing and reimbursement funcƟonality required (e.g., drawdowns, reporƟng)? Although acƟvity is minimal, 
some form of reporƟng is needed. 
Will project closeout automaƟcally trigger asset creaƟon in the Fixed Asset module? There is a manual review prior to 
asset recordaƟon; however, it would be ideal to explore this opƟon. 
Is DOW using Laserfiche to iniƟate contract requests, and should metadata be imported into the financial system? 
Laserfiche implementaƟon is on-going.  It would be ideal to explore the opƟon to auto-create contracts in the financial 
system for future contract payments. 
Are GASB 87 and GASB 96 compliance features required for lease and subscripƟon-based contracts? Currently leases and 
subscripƟons are managed via excel.  It would be ideal to explore the opƟon. 
Should the system support retainage tracking and automated noƟficaƟons for contract expiraƟon? Yes.  Contract 
payments and retainage tracking is required. 
Is vendor onboarding managed through Laserfiche or expected to be handled within the new financial system? Vendor 
maintenance will be maintained in the financial system. 
Will DOW require integraƟon with Bank of America for procurement card transacƟons? Yes. PCard transacƟons will be 
processed and coded with expense accounts in the procurement card module. 
Is vendor self-service funcƟonality (e.g., invoice submission, banking updates) a mandatory requirement? No 
Is Oracle CC&B the system of record for customer billing, or will the new system need to support AR funcƟonality? We 
have this as a feature to explore. 
Should the new financial system support refunds and adjustments iniƟated from CC&B or other billing plaƞorms?  We 
currently process manual refunds and adjustments as AP payments.  There is no integraƟon currently from CC&B to the 
current financial system. 
Is there a need for consolidated customer statements across mulƟple services or departments? No 
Will DOW provide a complete asset register for migraƟon? Yes, we are currently using excel.  Data requirements should 
be provided by the vendor. 
Is barcode scanning and mobile asset tracking required for physical inventory? No 
Which reporƟng tool are you currently using, or is there a dedicated plaƞorm available for reporƟng purposes? We are 
using Management Reporter.  We are interested to see standard reports are available and a soŌware that is available to 
pull data and create custom reports, based on needs. 
Could you please share the current technology landscape or a system architecture diagram outlining your exisƟng 
applicaƟons & infrastructure? We are on a MicrosoŌ Windows environment with Hybrid ADFS and Entra domain join. 
What is your preferred ERP support model aŌer go live 24/7 coverage, business hours only, or a hybrid approach? 
AnƟcipate business hours 
" - Please provide a departmental or funcƟonal breakdown of the anƟcipated ERP users across your organizaƟon. Include 
the number of users in each area such as Finance, Supply Chain, HR, and others Four Divisions, mulƟple user access from 
Admin/Super User, IniƟator, Reviewer/Approver, Read-only/Inquiry. 
 - For each department, please specify the number of users requiring full access (e.g., transacƟonal, administraƟve) 
versus those needing limited or approval-only access. This will help determine the appropriate mix of full and team 
licenses. 
AdministraƟve – 5 
Super User (Fiscal) - up to 15 
Processor (transacƟonal) - up to 20 
Approver – up to 15 
 - How many users will parƟcipate in approval workflows only (e.g., purchase requisiƟons, Ɵmesheets, leave requests)? 
Timesheets, leave requests – N/A 
AdministraƟve – 5 
Super User (Fiscal) - up to 15 
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Processor (transacƟonal) - up to 20 
Approver – up to 15 
 
Please indicate if these users require mobile or self-service access." Accessibility via VPN 
Do you anƟcipate an increase in the number of ERP users over the next 2-3 years? If so, please provide esƟmated growth 
by role or department to support future licensing scalability. 5-10 
Will any external users (e.g., contractors, vendors) require access to the system for approvals or data entry? No If yes, 
please specify the expected number and type of access required. External users anƟcipated would be external financial 
auditors pulling or reviewing data in the system. 
Will the data migraƟon scope include historical records, or will the focus be on current and open transacƟonal periods 
only? No migraƟon of historical data. 
Would it be feasible to keep legacy systems operaƟonal for accessing historical data, while migraƟng only current 
opening balances and master data to the new system? Yes, that is the current plan. 
Are there any legal, regulatory, or operaƟonal requirements to migrate historical records into the new ERP system? No.  
historical data will migrate, historical records conƟnue to be available in legacy system.   If yes, how many years of 
historical data migraƟon is required? N/A 
"For each of the following systems, please describe the current integraƟon requirements, including: 
- Type of data exchanged (e.g., financial transacƟons, documents, user records). 
- IntegraƟon method (e.g., API, flat file, middleware like SmartConnect). 
- Sync frequency (e.g., real-Ɵme, hourly, daily, weekly). 
- EsƟmated data volume (e.g., number of records per sync, file size, transacƟon count). 
- DirecƟon of data flow (e.g., one-way or bi-direcƟonal). 
- Any known performance or reliability constraints. 
Systems to be assessed: 
 - Oracle Customer Care and Billing 
No current integraƟon with legacy system. 
 - Workday 
No current integraƟon with legacy system. 
 - Cartegraph  
No current integraƟon with legacy system. 
 - Badger  
No current integraƟon with legacy system. 
 - ESRI ArcGIS  
No current integraƟon with legacy system. 
 - Laserfiche 
No current integraƟon with legacy system.  Would like to explore the opƟon to create contract records automaƟcally for 
contract payments. 
 
What level of integraƟon is expected with each system (e.g., real-Ɵme, batch processing, or API-based connecƟvity)? API-
based connecƟvity 
Do you intend to replace Cartegraph with the naƟve funcƟonality of the new ERP system? This is not a required opƟon.  
Cartegraph is primarily used for operaƟons job cosƟng (internal) and inventorying of parts used for repair and 
replacement.  If you plan to retain  Cartegraph, could you please specify which modules are currently in use? We are 
currently tracking capital assets and fixed assets by excel.  We would like to see what soŌware soluƟon you have that will 
Ɵe in costs, projects, and expenses that will eventually be booked as a capital asset. 
Are there any security, compliance, or regulatory constraints related to the data exchanged between these systems and 
the ERP? Encrypted data TLS 1.2 
Do you expect the new ERP system to support or facilitate addiƟonal integraƟons beyond those currently in use? At this 
Ɵme, no; however, be flexible to integrate two direcƟonal in the future as needs change. 
Are any specific middleware or integraƟon plaƞorms currently in use to facilitate data exchange between systems? No If 
Yes, are you open to replace it? 
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Question #30: 

Does the County prefer to have either/or: 
a.      a centralized cashiering process where all payments are made through one soŌware with real-Ɵme, bi-direcƟonal 
integraƟon back to other soŌware (like A/R, UB and miscellaneous receipts, etc.) and others via nightly imports  
We are currently centralized and have three (3) lobby windows.  All payments or checks received locally are processed by 
a lobby window. 
 
b.      decentralized where each department/soŌware records their own payments and updates the financial system? N/A 
 
If the County would like to move to a centralized cashiering approach, can you list the applicaƟons that you would like 
the new cashiering applicaƟon to take payments for? N/A 
 

Question #31: 

Does the DOW have a mulƟ-check scanning process in place for recording checks and invoices in batch? No. If not, 
should this be included in the response? This would be a nice to have and not a need to have.  This would be ideal for 
researching payments; however, our bank provides us with digital imaging. What is the annual volume that the DOW 
would scan using this process? We bill monthly to approximately 23K customers.  The cloud storage to maintain the 
images could deter the nice to have. 
 

Question #32: 

Would the DOW like the new cashiering soluƟon to become the DOW's Online Customer Payment Portal? If so, what 
applicaƟons would the DOW like to take online payments for? 
Currently our customer account portal accepts water service monthly bill payments and provides historical usage 
and payment history.  Our customer account portal is managed by external consultants 24/7. 

 

Question #33: 

Would the DOW provide us with the total number of users, including supervisors, that will access only the new 
Cashiering/POS module? This would be based on receiving payments for the Financial A/R system, other systems like UB, 
miscellaneous payments and any users associated with the answer above. (Note that read-only users and daily 
departmental revenue submiƩers are no charge.)  
Currently, there are 13 users. 
 

Question #34: 

What credit processors are the DOW currently using? 
Stripe.  We would entertain options for credit card processing.  We currently do not have credit card terminals. 

 

Question #35: 

For cash receipƟng, what are your top five issues you experience? Of those five, which is most important and why? 
The main issue with cash receipts currently is the daily reconciliation with Stripe payments.   
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Question #36: 

Would the DOW like the cashiering soluƟon to create an Image Cash LeƩer (ICL) containing check images for deposit, and 
send it to your bank? If so, what bank? 
We do not currently send check images to the bank.  Deposits are handled by courier.  This would be nice to have, 
but not need to have. 

 

Question #37: 

In Exhibit A - References, Cost Proposal SecƟon D, Financial Management SoŌware SoluƟon Requirements 
QuesƟonnaire, and Form OF-1 be in a Word or otherwise fillable format? 
Yes, a fillable form will be provided. 
 

Question #38: 

There are UB requirements in Requirements QuesƟonnaire form  See page 33 - lisƟng UƟlity Billing as an in-scope 
module. See page 40 from #123 to 144 but in secƟon 2.1 Table 1 Oracle CCB is listed as retain. Is UB in scope or not? 
UƟlity Billing is not within the scope; quesƟons 138 to 144 incorrectly categorized, it should be “E”.  If selected as a top 
responder, it would be ideal to view the billing soluƟon at a high-level during demonstraƟon. 
 

Question #39: 

For implementaƟon costs, we have found that Time & Material costs save clients verses Fixed Pricing. Will DOW accept 
T&M pricing for ImplementaƟon Services? 
Time and Material would be explored; however, we would want to also see a breakdown of fixed pricing. 
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